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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone.  I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5  Joining me are Committee members Simcha Felder,

          6  Larry Seabrook, Mike McMahon, Melinda Katz and Eric

          7  Gioia. We have a lot of items on the agenda today,

          8  but first I will mention those items that are being

          9  laid over at the request of the Council Member.

         10                 First one is the Bedford Stuyvesant

         11  South Rezoning. That is being laid over.  That is in

         12  Council Member Vann's district.  The 45 Summit

         13  Street Rezoning is being laid over in Council Member

         14  De Blasio's district, as well as the South Brooklyn

         15  Savings Bank is also being laid over.  In Council

         16  Member Brewer's district, 95 West 95th Street

         17  Rezoning is being laid over.  I believe that is it

         18  with the items being laid over.

         19                 I will call City Planning up to give

         20  testimony on the West Chelsea Tax Amendment, the

         21  Privately Owned Plaza Amendment and the St. Albans

         22  Rezoning.

         23                 MS. SELLKE: Good morning, Chair

         24  Avella, Chair Katz, Council Members.  My name is

         25  Erica Sellke.  I'm with Department of City Planning.
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          2  I am here today to speak about the West Chelsea Text

          3  Amendment.  The Department of City Planning

          4  requested a text amendment to the High Line

          5  Improvement Bonus provisions for Subarea H of the

          6  Special West Chelsea District to modify the means by

          7  which a public plaza and public stairway and public

          8  elevator are accessed to the High Line is

          9  constructed.

         10                 This Subarea H was created in the

         11  approved Department of City Planning's Special West

         12  Chelsea District in Community District 4, Manhattan.

         13    The area we're talking about today is bounded by

         14  West 18th Street to the north, West 17th Street to

         15  the south, 10th Avenue to the East and 11th Avenue

         16  to the West.

         17                 Currently, the text requires that the

         18  owner of this single lot on one block complete

         19  construction work of an at grade plaza and a public

         20  stair and public elevator for access to the High

         21  Line pursuant to construction documents provided by

         22  the City in order to procure a Certificate of

         23  Occupancy for any buildings in Subarea H.  The

         24  proposed text amendment would maintain the existing

         25  process for plaza construction, but would add an
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          2  alternate process whereby the City, rather than the

          3  owner of Subarea H  --  the lot on Subarea H  --

          4  would reach an agreement to construct the at grade

          5  plaza and public stair and elevator access to the

          6  High Line.

          7                 The Community Board voted to approve

          8  the text amendment.  The Borough President also

          9  recommended approval of the application, and the

         10  City Planning Commission also approved the text

         11  amendment application.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is that it?

         13                 This is obviously within Speaker

         14  Quinn's district, and she is supportive.  Any

         15  questions from Committee members? Anybody signed up

         16  to speak on this item?  No.

         17                 I will close the public hearing, and

         18  we move on to the two other applications.

         19                 I see we've also been joined by

         20  Council Member Bob Jackson.

         21                 MR. BOTSFORD: Good morning, Council

         22  Members.  My name is Erik Botsford.  I'm from the

         23  Manhattan Office of the Department of City Planning,

         24  and I am pleased to bring to you an application for

         25  a Citywide text amendment to revise and update the
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          2  design standards that apply to privately owned

          3  public plazas throughout the City of New York.

          4                 The proposed text would generally

          5  apply on high density commercial and residential

          6  districts where the privately owned public spaces

          7  bonus is currently available.  That bonus provides

          8  for generally a 20 percent floor area bonus in

          9  exchange for the construction by the property owner

         10  of a public plaza on their property.

         11                 The goals of the proposed text

         12  amendment are again to revise and update the design

         13  standards for the privately owned public plazas,

         14  those things such as seating, planting, landscaping,

         15  paving and lighting to provide valuable open space

         16  amenities in dense urban neighborhoods in the City

         17  of New York and to ensure that these spaces are

         18  designed to a high standard and a high quality and

         19  can serve a variety of users and that the end result

         20  are safe, open and enjoyable spaces.

         21                 The origin of the text really comes

         22  from an exhaustive inventory in analysis of the over

         23  250 public plazas that have been constructed in the

         24  City since 1961 when the bonus plaza zoning was

         25  first put into place.  As you see in your packets
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          2  and on the board, a number of these spaces are of

          3  marginal quality from a design perspective.  They

          4  lack landscaping.  They lack seating. They lack

          5  lighting, and there's definite room for improvement

          6  in the design standards that apply to these spaces.

          7                 The types of public plazas that we

          8  would like to see created more frequently are those

          9  such as these that you see here that have ample

         10  seating close to the sidewalk and within the plaza,

         11  generous landscaping and really conserve a variety

         12  of plaza users that are engaged in a variety of

         13  activities.  These are just a couple of examples

         14  that we really think are best case examples of

         15  existing public plazas.

         16                 In brief, the proposal would

         17  consolidate the existing public plaza regulations

         18  and create a new plaza type that would apply moving

         19  forward for all new public plazas.  This new space

         20  would be called the Public Plaza, not surprisingly.

         21  The design standards would be updated.  Outdated or

         22  unutilized provisions that relate to these plazas

         23  would be removed from the text, and operational and

         24  design regulations that apply to night time closing

         25  of these spaces and the location of open air cafes
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          2  and kiosks are also being modified.

          3                 Just touching briefly on the major

          4  design elements, there are a large number of design

          5  standards that are being modified here, but these

          6  are the truly significant ones.  First, the sidewalk

          7  frontage of the plaza.  Many spaces currently

          8  provide essentially no amenities anywhere close to

          9  the sidewalk, and the end result is that the space

         10  appears very unwelcoming, quite barren.  This is the

         11  result of that, as you can see, a plaza that really

         12  turns its back to the street and doesn't put out the

         13  welcome mat for the public.

         14                 What we would like to see, and what

         15  the new design standards would achieve are to

         16  require a portion of the required seating in the

         17  plaza be located within 15 feet of the sidewalk so

         18  to really provide, as you can see here, seating that

         19  is available right off the sidewalk.  So people

         20  could just stop.  They can just rest quickly, and

         21  then move along if they care to, and it just

         22  animates the front of the plaza in a way that really

         23  enlivens the plaza overall.

         24                 Elevation regulations are another

         25  area that are the subject of this text amendment.
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          2  Currently, plazas are permitted to be sunken below

          3  street level, and also elevated quite far above

          4  street level.  We are proposing to modify this so

          5  that plazas can no longer be sunken and could only

          6  be elevated above street level approximately two

          7  feet.  That's really what you see in this image

          8  here, which provides a comfortable transition

          9  between the sidewalk and the plaza space.  It's easy

         10  for people of a variety of abilities to actually

         11  move up in the space.  Of course, all these spaces

         12  are required to be fully ADA accessible.

         13                 Seating is another, obviously, major

         14  element of public plazas, and that speak to the

         15  success of the public plazas. The proposed text

         16  would require that a variety of the seating options

         17  be provided in the plazas, anything from movable

         18  tables and chairs, fixed benches, fixed individual

         19  seats, seating walls, et cetera.

         20                 At the same time, we see in a number

         21  of plazas devices that are installed on required

         22  seating surfaces that are intended to prevent

         23  seating and these are inappropriate for public

         24  spaces and the proposed text would prohibit these on

         25  required seating surfaces.
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          2                 The planting regulations would also

          3  be modified slightly.  Currently, the proposed

          4  regulations require a minimum trunk width in trees

          5  of four inches.  The proposed text would allow

          6  additional flexibility so that landscape architects

          7  could propose multi- stem trees such as the bamboo

          8  that you see here, or also large specimen trees

          9  within plazas.  Again, the goal here is to provide

         10  additional planting flexibility.

         11                 Moving on to the changes to

         12  operational standards. Currently, public plazas are

         13  by default open 24 hours a day.  The owner may seek

         14  an authorization for night time closing of these

         15  spaces if conditions warrant.  The existing text

         16  permits barriers to be constructed, gates

         17  essentially, that are, we feel, overly large.  In

         18  some cases, they are over 15 feet tall, the posts in

         19  the gates are sometimes three or four inches thick

         20  and we think that that is excessive for securing

         21  this public space.  The proposed text would limit

         22  the height of such barriers to no more than five

         23  feet in height, and would require when the plaza is

         24  open to the public that these gates fold away

         25  completely to the edges of the plaza thereby opening
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          2  up the entire space to the public when the plaza is

          3  intended to be open to the public.

          4                 Finally, the provisions related to

          5  kiosks and open air cafes within plazas.  The

          6  primary change is to prohibit the placement of

          7  barriers around these open air cafes and kiosks.

          8  These are intended to be plaza amenities that serve

          9  the public that utilizes the plaza, and we feel that

         10  barriers that separate these from the plaza such as

         11  planters, for example, or fabric dividers

         12  essentially privatize a portion of the public plaza

         13  and are, therefore, inappropriate.

         14                 The proposed text was referred to 14

         15  community boards primarily in Manhattan.  There's

         16  limited applicability also in the Bronx, Brooklyn

         17  and in Queens.  It was also referred to the borough

         18  presidents and borough boards, and we received

         19  unanimous support on the proposed text amendment.

         20  Where we did hear comment from community boards, the

         21  City Planning Commission acted and made additional

         22  changes prior to their vote in support.

         23                 For example, one of the changes that

         24  they made, and we heard from several community

         25  boards, was concern that plaza lighting would
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          2  negatively impact adjacent residential buildings,

          3  would essentially shine into residential windows.

          4  The City Planning Commission modified the text to

          5  state that such plaza lighting should not shine into

          6  adjacent residential buildings' windows.

          7                 I'm happy to answer any questions you

          8  may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I want to thank

         10  City Planning for coming up with these new

         11  regulations.  They'll definitely be an improvement

         12  on existing privately owned plazas.  Council Member

         13  Katz.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         15  much, and good to see you both again.  As you know,

         16  we had a meeting last week, and I expressed some, I

         17  think, pretty important concerns about two of the

         18  items in this application.  The first was, and I

         19  missed it somehow.  I'm sorry.  I must of either

         20  gotten pulled from it, but the front of the building

         21  requirement, could you just go over that once more

         22  as to the placement of the plaza?

         23                 MR. BOTSFORD: Sure.  The building

         24  entrance?  Yes. The proposed text would require that

         25  building entrances, for the building that has
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          2  received the plaza bonus, be located on the public

          3  plaza itself, or within ten feet of the public

          4  plaza.  The existing text does not have such

          5  requirements, and I think, as we discussed

          6  previously, this is something that we do feel quite

          7  strongly about.

          8                 The result of the existing text are

          9  plazas that have no relationship to the building

         10  that received the floor area bonus. They are located

         11  at the back of the building, or the space is

         12  fragmented and is located in various areas around

         13  the building. These spaces tend to be less well

         14  maintained, less well used and frequently these are

         15  the spaces that come to us with applications for

         16  night time closing because of safety issues.  The

         17  lobby, for example, doesn't front on these spaces.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What is the out

         19  provision? Let's just say that a building is

         20  designed  --  and I'm worried about this more in

         21  other boroughs besides Manhattan.  What are the out

         22  provisions?  A developer wants to put an open air

         23  area in there.  It would be good for the building.

         24  The residents of the building think it's a good  --

         25  you know the future residents  -- It would up the
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          2  value for them.  What's the out provision?

          3                 MR. BOTSFORD: The ultimate out

          4  provision is a special permit which is available to

          5  modify any of the design standards of public plazas

          6  due to unique site conditions, for example.  So if

          7  there is an extraordinary circumstance where the

          8  building entrance would need to be located elsewhere

          9  that could be achieved via special permits.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Any

         11  extraordinary circumstances are defined by whom?

         12                 MR. BOTSFORD: Well the extraordinary

         13  circumstances --  That's not actually in the zoning

         14  regulation, that specific language.  That was my

         15  language.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Really?  You

         17  know I kind of though that.

         18                 So it would be a special permit

         19  basically to the Council and have to go through the

         20  whole process?

         21                 MR. BOTSFORD: Yes.  Yes, full

         22  process.

         23                 I'd also like to note that this isn't

         24  also required that this be the only building

         25  entrance.  For example, there could be other
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          2  entrances that front on other streets.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm just

          4  thinking that sometimes you want a plaza, even if

          5  it's not in the perfect location.

          6                 The second thing that we talked about

          7  is the barriers of the open air cafe.  I understand

          8  the idea of not wanting to cut it off, but my

          9  concern came more so with the idea of painting the

         10  ground in order to see that there's no creep out

         11  into the plaza.  Is that a requirement, or is that

         12  just something that you've suggested?

         13                 MR. BOTSFORD: That is a requirement.

         14  That's one of the changes that the City Planning

         15  Commission made prior to their vote in response to

         16  comments that were received from Manhattan Community

         17  Board 4 who had been particularly concerned about

         18  cafe creep.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What happens if

         20  they pull their cafe in at night?  Then you have

         21  paintings on the ground that show where the cafe

         22  was?

         23                 MR. BOTSFORD: Well I think these are

         24  intended to be relatively inconspicuous markings on

         25  the plaza.  They are no more than an inch in width,
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          2  and they are located at intervals of five feet along

          3  the run of the plaza.  Similar requirements apply to

          4  sidewalk cafes, and we think those are appropriate.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I would submit

          6  that when the inspector comes to see whether the

          7  cafe has been crept out that they don't need the

          8  markings on the ground in order to determine whether

          9  or not it's too far.  I'd also submit to you that a

         10  community board, I know at least my community board,

         11  knows exactly how far those cafes are supposed to be

         12  out.  Whether you have markings on the ground or

         13  not, I believe that they would be able to know, and

         14  the community would know, and I would know, when it

         15  was appropriate to call an inspector.  I just think

         16  that it's setting up just an ugly sort of thing at

         17  night for the plaza, not to mention during the day

         18  where you could have a see through barrier, or

         19  something that's not opaque, maybe a short one or

         20  something like that.  All right.  Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         23  Felder.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         25  much.  I have one specific question and one general
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          2  question.  They're related. There's this issue of

          3  the metal that's put up to, I assume, to prevent

          4  people from sitting as well as sleeping.

          5                 MR. BOTSFORD: These devices are

          6  primarily to prevent sitting.  Sleeping devices  --

          7  I mean they obviously achieve the same the thing,

          8  but sleeping devices can be placed on seating

          9  surfaces in a way that doesn't inhibit seating.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But the

         11  pictures that you show, and it's very difficult

         12  sometimes in a photo, are you saying, for example,

         13  this brick over here is supposed to be there for

         14  seating?

         15                 MR. BOTSFORD: In some plazas, those

         16  would count as a required seating surface.  Planter

         17  ledges can count as seating surfaces, yes, if they

         18  are within the  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And this as

         20  well?

         21                 MR. BOTSFORD: The edges of that could

         22  conceivably count as that, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So some of it

         24  you would admit there is no problem with it.  Right?

         25    Even according to your estimates.
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          2                 MR. BOTSFORD: I think we would prefer

          3  that it be achieved in a different manner in that

          4  sense.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Let me just

          6  say that I don't necessarily, with all due respect

          7  to the Chair, I don't necessarily disagree with most

          8  of what you're presenting.  I don't know how many

          9  community boards this will affect.

         10                 MR. BOTSFORD: Fourteen.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.  Thank

         12  you.  I was just given an attachment.  I'm now being

         13  self- centered.  Do you know how many in Brooklyn?

         14  I can't find this easily.

         15                 MR. BOTSFORD: One community board in

         16  Brooklyn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.  I'm not

         18  even going to ask you if it's in my district because

         19  it really doesn't matter. I have a problem with this

         20  all thing, with the entire thing.  I don't think I

         21  can vote on this without being intimately familiar

         22  with how it's going to affect  --  Normally when an

         23  issue comes up at this Committee that affects one

         24  district, one Council person's district, whether I'm

         25  familiar or not doesn't really matter to me because
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          2  I have confidence in the fact that my colleague

          3  knows what is going on and if they're supportive of

          4  the change, then that's fine, and if not, not.  I

          5  may have a question, and hopefully it may be one

          6  that has some intelligence to it, but most of the

          7  time I defer.  I would hope that my colleagues would

          8  do the same with me. In this case, I have to tell

          9  you, I'm going to vote no, against this.  Not

         10  because in any way that I disagree with it, but I

         11  don't know.  I can't vote yes on something that I

         12  have no knowledge about, and I think that the Chairs

         13  deserve to know intimately, obviously more so than

         14  anyone else, but when it comes to me voting and

         15  somebody says to me why did you vote yes on this

         16  item and it effects the whole City in some way or

         17  most of the City, I think that I would not be doing

         18  what I should by voting yes.  I just want to make it

         19  clear that I have a lot of questions.  I want to

         20  reiterate to the Chair it doesn't mean that I

         21  disagree, but on an issue like this, I don't think

         22  that I can vote yes, and I don't know how many times

         23  I voted no.  So thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Your point is

         25  well taken, and certainly it is not the Council, or
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          2  the Committee, or the Chairs intent that somebody

          3  should vote on a matter that they are not familiar

          4  with.  Staff is, at this point, checking out  --

          5  One second.  In response to your concerns, we have

          6  to move this by a certain time, but there is another

          7  Committee meeting that's going to be scheduled in

          8  advance.  So what we can do is I can recess this

          9  meeting and schedule another one that will give you

         10  further time, and other Committee member that wants

         11  more time, to have a personal briefing with City

         12  Planning and go over this in greater detail.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I appreciate

         14  that, and whatever the Chair recommends is fine with

         15  me.  I just think that they may be other members  --

         16    In other words, other members normally that don't

         17  sit on the Committee at all that will find out at

         18  the last minute that something was voted upon that

         19  effects them maybe in some way and they're not

         20  familiar with.  I don't know whether it's a larger

         21  issue or not.  That's all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Right.  We will

         23  make an accommodation, Council Member.  Council

         24  Member Jackson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair.  I'd had asked the question about what

          3  community boards in Manhattan then I saw the notice,

          4  and inclusive in Manhattan is Community Board 12,

          5  which is from 155th Street to 220th Street, the most

          6  northern part of Manhattan, Community Board 10,

          7  which encompasses mainly Central Harlem and other

          8  parts.  I did not see Community Board 9.  Is there

          9  any reason why Community Board 9 was not included?

         10  The reason why I'm asking that question is because

         11  Community Board 9 is in my district, and that runs

         12  from 110th Street north to 155th Street.  I was

         13  curious as to how did you come up with determining

         14  which boards and how would this impact Board 9 being

         15  included, if not now, in the future?

         16                 MR. BOTSFORD: I understand.  The text

         17  was referred to, as I said, 14 community boards.

         18  These community boards are those where the zoning

         19  districts exist that allow for the construction of

         20  these plazas.  These plazas may only be constructed

         21  generally in high density commercial and residential

         22  districts, and there's a specific number of those

         23  zoning districts where this is permitted.  Community

         24  Board 9 in Manhattan does not contain any of these

         25  zoning districts, therefore  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What zoning

          3  district is that?

          4                 MR. BOTSFORD: There's a variety of

          5  zoning districts that this applies to.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Give me an

          7  example.  Where? Give me one.

          8                 MR. BOTSFORD: For example, R- 9 and

          9  R- 10 districts.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         11                 MR. BOTSFORD: C- 47 districts, M- 15

         12  districts.  So there are a variety.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Those are the

         14  districts where these plazas can go in at this point

         15  in time?

         16                 MR. BOTSFORD: May be constructed,

         17  that's correct. None of those exist in Community

         18  Board 9.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, and so

         20  that's why Board 9 was not included.

         21                 MR. BOTSFORD: That's correct, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         25  questions from Council Members, Committee members?
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          2  Seeing none, thank you.  Has anybody signed up to

          3  speak on the public on this?  No.  I'll close the

          4  public hearing on this item, and what we will do is

          5  follow- up. Please follow- up with Council Member

          6  Felder.

          7                 MR. BOTSFORD: I'm happy to.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sure.  Go ahead.

          9  Council Member Jackson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm sorry.

         11  Now these public plazas, what about   --  Do you

         12  have public plazas in private space?  Do they have

         13  the amenities of a water fountain and/or restrooms?

         14                 MR. BOTSFORD: All of these spaces are

         15  required to provide a water fountain.  Restrooms are

         16  not a requirement in these spaces.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So water

         18  fountains are a requirement, restrooms are not.

         19                 MR. BOTSFORD: That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What is the

         21  norm as far as that currently exists and the ones

         22  that are currently existing in Manhattan or other

         23  boroughs, are the private developers putting in

         24  restrooms, or they're not?

         25                 MR. BOTSFORD: Generally, no, they do
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          2  not provide restrooms in these spaces.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So if the

          4  public had to use the bathroom, where would they go?

          5                 MR. BOTSFORD: It would be the same as

          6  if a person were in any other public space in these

          7  neighborhoods.  For example, if you were on the

          8  sidewalk or walking down the street, you would need

          9  to use the same facilities that anybody would use in

         10  that kind of a situation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Do you think

         12  that some of these plazas may be ideal for the new

         13  public toilets that are coming up around the City?

         14                 I'm just throwing out some thoughts

         15  here because some of the plazas are pretty sizable.

         16                 MR. BOTSFORD: That's correct.  They

         17  are.  The restroom issue is  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I mean we

         19  need more public restrooms in New York City.  You

         20  would agree with that, right?

         21                 MR. BOTSFORD: I would absolutely

         22  agree with that, yes.  The real issue here, I think,

         23  is one of maintenance, and ensuring that each of

         24  these individual property owners would maintain a

         25  restroom facility constructed on their property.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: The public

          3  toilets, those are self- cleaning ones.  You know

          4  that right?

          5                 MR. BOTSFORD: Yes, I do, but I would

          6   --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm throwing

          8  out a suggestion.

          9                 MR. BOTSFORD: I understand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think Council

         11  Member Jackson's suggestion is a good, and I would

         12  urge City Planning to take a look at it and get back

         13  to us.

         14                 MR. BOTSFORD: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is City

         16  Planning  --  Is there a certain requirement as far

         17  as lighting in the evening?

         18                 MR. BOTSFORD: Yes, there are specific

         19  requirements that pertain to lighting.  They require

         20  that lighting is maintained at a minimum level

         21  throughout the public plaza with specific focus on

         22  circulation paths within the plaza itself.  Yes,

         23  those are in the standards.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Because I see

         25  some of these big plazas here.  This one looks like

                                                            27

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  a pretty sizable one, the one that you have on

          3  display here where you talked about barriers.  I

          4  mean it seems like there's a lot of people in that

          5  particular public space even though it may developed

          6  by a private individual, and that looks clearly

          7  large enough for one of these new public, self-

          8  cleaning restrooms.

          9                 MR. BOTSFORD: I understand.  That's

         10  something that we will look at.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In addition to

         14  obviously getting back to and meeting with Council

         15  Member Felder, you will follow- up with Council

         16  Member Katz on the issues she has raised, and you

         17  will get back to us on Council Member Jackson's

         18  suggestion, which I think is a good one.

         19                 MR. BOTSFORD: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good.  No one

         21  signed up on this public hearing.  I will close it.

         22  We will now move on to City Planning's presentation

         23  of St. Albans rezoning.

         24                 I see we've also been joined by

         25  Council Member Stewart.
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          2                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

          3  Avella, Chair Katz, City Council Members, ladies and

          4  gentlemen.  My name is John Young, and I'm the

          5  Director of the Queens office for the Department of

          6  City Planning.  On behalf of City Planning Director

          7  Amanda Burden, I'm very pleased to be here this

          8  morning to present the Department's proposal to

          9  update zoning designations in the St. Albans and

         10  Hollis communities in southeast Queens.  I'm joined

         11  by Rob Holbrook who is the Project Manager for the

         12  rezoning proposal that's before you.

         13                 For this proposal, the Department has

         14  developed a carefully delineated rezoning strategy

         15  to address the particular concerns of residents

         16  regarding the areas development trends.  As we will

         17  explain, the proposal seeks to curb inappropriate

         18  development that diminishes the community's built

         19  fabric while ensuring that retail and mixed-use

         20  buildings to serve the needs of area residents may

         21  be provided along primary streets.

         22                 The rezoning proposal is a

         23  comprehensive strategy for the St. Albans and Hollis

         24  neighborhoods and encompasses all or portions of 317

         25  blocks.  It's one of the largest rezonings that
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          2  we've done and it adjoins the recently adopted

          3  Jamaica Rezoning Area to the northwest.  It also

          4  includes the community of Adesley Park (phonetic)

          5  within it, and these southeast Queens neighborhoods

          6  are exemplified by appealing residential streets

          7  with a mix of one- and two-family houses generally

          8  constructed from the early to mid-20th century, but

          9  developed in a range of building types, including

         10  detached, semi-detached and row house structures.

         11  The edges of the rezoning area are formed by primary

         12  streets, including Merrick, Springfield and Francis

         13  Lewis Boulevards, and it includes the large Roy

         14  Wilkins Park for Southeast Queens within it.

         15                 St. Albans and Hollis are

         16  experiencing a housing construction boom that is

         17  based in large measure to the proximity to downtown

         18  Jamaica.  Recent development trends have resulted in

         19  new housing that's increasingly inconsistent with

         20  the areas established patterns of development.

         21  Typically, single- family detached homes are

         22  replaced by semi- detached homes or multi- family

         23  buildings.

         24                 The rezoning proposal seeks to

         25  protect the qualities and characteristics that make
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          2  these areas desirable.  It's main objectives are to

          3  ensure that new development more closely matches

          4  established patterns of one and two- family building

          5  types typically found on residential streets, limit

          6  multi-family residential and mixed-use buildings to

          7  primary corridors, such as Merrick, Farmers and

          8  Linden Boulevards, and prevent encroachment of

          9  commercial development into residential areas.

         10                 In order to achieve these objectives,

         11  the rezoning proposal will replace zoning that

         12  generally dates to 1961 with new lower density or

         13  contextual districts.  Within the rezoning area, the

         14  existing zones, there are four basic zones, R2,

         15  R3-2, R4 and R6B, would be replaced with nine zoning

         16  districts whose boundaries have been carefully

         17  selected to better reflect the built character of

         18  various parts of St. Albans and Hollis.

         19                 In a moment, Rob will present these

         20  rezoning changes to you.  We are grateful to have

         21  worked with the areas very committed civic groups

         22  and residents in creating this proposal. The

         23  rezoning plan has benefitted greatly from their

         24  input as well as the leadership of the areas Council

         25  Member Leroy Comrie.  The proposal has received a
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          2  recommendation for approval with a condition that

          3  the proposed R6A district, which you'll see along

          4  Linden Boulevard at Merrick, be modified to an R5D

          5  district from Community Board 12.  Queensborough

          6  President Helen Marshall recommended approval of the

          7  proposal, and we hope you too will support this

          8  rezoning proposal that seeks to protect and enhance

          9  the cherished neighborhood qualities of St. Albans,

         10  Hollis and Adesley Park (phonetic).  Rob Holbrook

         11  will now present the rezoning proposal to you, and

         12  then we will answer any questions you may have.

         13                 MR. HOLBROOK: Good morning, Chair

         14  Avella, Chair Katz, Council Members.  My name is Rob

         15  Holbrook.  I'm the City Planner for Community Board

         16  12, and the map to my left shows the study area in

         17  question.  Again, this is the far eastern portion of

         18  Community Board 12.  Directly to the north and west

         19  is Downtown Jamaica.  Directly to the east is

         20  Cambria Heights, which you may be familiar with.

         21  The boundaries are roughly 99th Avenue to the north,

         22  along the railroad tracks.  To the east, we have

         23  Francis Lewis Boulevard, Springfield Boulevard, and

         24  the west Merrick Boulevard, all the way up to

         25  Brinkerhoff and Farmers Boulevard. The major
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          2  corridors are Linden Boulevard, which sort of

          3  bisects the areas east/west, Farmers Boulevard,

          4  which bisects it north/south, Hollis Avenue to the

          5  north in the Hollis Section of this rezoning.

          6                 As has been mentioned, existing

          7  zoning ranges from R- 2, which is a single- family

          8  detached zone, R- 3 to a general residence district,

          9  pockets of R- 4 on the eastern portion, and if you

         10  notice the very center of the area, there's an R6B

         11  and an R5B district that was adopted in 1995 as part

         12  of a rezoning that included the R4 be contextual

         13  zoning to the very south of the area.

         14                 Although those areas include

         15  single-family and general residence districts,

         16  existing context is quite different. Here's some

         17  images.  The top left corner shows detached homes in

         18  the northern portion of Hollis, which are the

         19  predominant character in the area.  There are

         20  various sizes of those homes, which we will talk

         21  about in a little bit.  Some of them are on a wider

         22  lot, some of them are narrow.  In addition, we have

         23  contextual row houses and semi-detached buildings.

         24  The far right bottom image is Hollis Avenue where we

         25  have some commercial strips, lots of commercial
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          2  activities and some residential units.

          3                 Looking at the character of these

          4  neighborhoods, we've created a proposal, and this

          5  proposal was created in conjunction with input from

          6  the community.  The community's feeling with the R-

          7  2 district really met their needs.  They were very

          8  happy with it, so we have not touched the R- 2

          9  district.  We've left it alone.  In fact, we've

         10  expanded it in areas of Adesley Park and portions of

         11  major corridors where the commercial overlay in the

         12  R3 2 was beyond the side streets.  So we actually

         13  extended those R2 districts where we can where these

         14  a single- family detached characteristic.

         15                 The majority of the rezoning is

         16  replacing R3- 2 districts with R3A and R3X

         17  districts, which are contextual one and two- family

         18  detached only districts.  The floor area issue

         19  requirement would remain the same.  The bulk of

         20  these buildings would be equal, but the restriction

         21  would be now these buildings would only be able to

         22  be detached one or two- family homes.

         23                 The difference between the R3 and the

         24  R3X is a question of lot width and lot area.  On the

         25  wider lots, the R3X is appropriate.  Where there are
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          2  areas with narrower lots, the R3A is appropriate.

          3                 In addition, the colors that you see

          4  on this map show both occupancy and building type.

          5  The orange colors are either semi- detached or

          6  attached houses, which is another change that we've

          7  made.  In areas where we have R4 today, we've

          8  proposed R4- 1 where there are semi- detached

          9  characteristics and R4B where there are row houses.

         10  The R4- 1, again, allows one and two- family semi-

         11  detached only at the same .9 FAR.  The R4B allows

         12  attached one and two- family row houses where

         13  parking is only allowed in the rear, which is

         14  consistent with this building type.  Most of these

         15  buildings are alley fed.

         16                 In addition, we have a small area of

         17  R4A where there is a detached characteristic of

         18  slightly larger, denser buildings where the .9 FAR

         19  is really required to bring those buildings into

         20  conformance.

         21                 Finally, the major corridors.  As I

         22  had mentioned, in '95 there was a rezoning that

         23  created an R6B and an R5B on Linden Boulevard.  We

         24  are proposing to extend that R5B on Linden Boulevard

         25  created on Hollis Avenue and Farmers Boulevard.
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          2  That would allow new development maximum of 33 feet,

          3  three stories. These are the major commercial

          4  corridors, so we would expect that areas where you

          5  have a single commercial building today, you would

          6  be allow to provide second and third floor of

          7  residential housing above.  The R6B which is created

          8  in 1995 has only produced really one development

          9  site which the community felt has not met their

         10  needs.  It did not provide any parking.  The

         11  developer was able to waive the parking requirement

         12  on that site.  There were a total of, I believe, 30

         13  units in that development.  He provided no parking

         14  by subdividing that property into smaller building,

         15  which we feel is a loophole.  We've actually created

         16  a new district the R5D to address that loophole, and

         17  we are proposing to replace all of the R6B with the

         18  R5D, which has a higher parking requirement, same

         19  FAR of .2 and will also reduce the maximum height

         20  from 50 feet to 40 feet providing a more appropriate

         21  development center at this location at Farmers and

         22  Linden.

         23                 In the far west area of this rezoning

         24  on Linden and Merrick Boulevard, just north of Roy

         25  Wilkins Park, south of St. Albans Park, we have
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          2  proposed an R6A on a block and a half of area that

          3  is a potential development site for a house of

          4  worship in the area.  That particular house of

          5  worship was interested in developing a scenario for

          6  their parking lot and again as we mentioned which

          7  segue ways nicely into the Community Board

          8  recommendation.  The Community Board has recommended

          9  approval of all of this rezoning except for that

         10  R6A, which they've requested a modification to an

         11  R5D, a 40- foot height limit.  They felt that the

         12  70- feet of the R6A was inappropriate for the area

         13  and they've requested us to reduce that.  The

         14  Borough President has approved this unconditionally,

         15  and I'd be happy to answer any questions if you have

         16  any.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before we take

         18  questions from Committee members, Council Member

         19  Comrie, would you like to comment?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair.  I just would like to inform the members of

         22  the Committee that this plan was bedded thoroughly

         23  by City Planning Commission.  I want to thank John

         24  Young and Rob Holbrook and Debbie Carney and the

         25  entire team, and the Council staff for coming in and

                                                            37

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  looking at it. We've had many community meetings

          3  about it.  As they said, the Community Board voted

          4  to accept it overwhelmingly other than the three

          5  blocks in question, which I do support the change

          6  that the Community Board has asked for reluctantly

          7  to move it from an R6A to an R5D.

          8                 I want to be brief, but I just also

          9  want be thorough that we did take a very detailed

         10  look at the plan.  It's a very comprehensive plan.

         11  It really protects an area that has been inundated

         12  with over- development and builders that have been

         13  coming in and tearing down lots.  The average lot

         14  size there is 40 by 100. We have a lot of lots that

         15  are 100 by 100, and 80 by 100, and this will protect

         16  the historical continuity of the area as opposed to

         17  what developers have been coming and tearing down

         18  one and two families and building six- families.

         19                 I really want to compliment City

         20  Planning for everything that they've done to respond

         21  to this rezoning, and I urge all of the members of

         22  the Committee to vote aye.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: To vote aye with

         24  the modification?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: With the
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          2  modification. Sorry.  I used the technical term  --

          3  to vote aye with the modification.  Thank you.

          4  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

          6  Committee members?  Okay.  We do have one person

          7  signed up to speak on this item, Sandra Atwell.

          8                 MS. ATWELL: Good morning.  My name is

          9  Sandra Atwell, and I represent the Hollis 11423

         10  Block Association.  As far as the Hollis/St. Albans

         11  plan is concerned, the only objection I have is an

         12  area that involves 11 homes, and it's on the north

         13  side of Hollis Avenue.  It's now R3- 2, and since

         14  2005, we let it be known that we wanted that down-

         15  zoned to R2.

         16                 However, when the plan was certified,

         17  it was certified down- zoned to R3X.  When we did

         18  further research on this, we realized that the homes

         19  in this stretch all fit into the R2 zoning

         20  regulations, and that the R3X would decrease the lot

         21  size for that area and this is not what we want.

         22                 We want to make sure that both sides

         23  of the street, since they are basically the same,

         24  have the same R2 zoning regulations.  With the size

         25  of the lots on the north side, it's easy for a
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          2  developer to come along and try to put two houses on

          3  a lot, and this is what we want to avoid.

          4                 I don't understand why it is a

          5  problem because the community presented this.  We

          6  said what we wanted.  Even though it was certified

          7  3X, we did go to the Planning  --  Well the Planning

          8  Board didn't really have the public portion, but we

          9  did go to the Borough President's hearing and we

         10  also attending the City Planning hearing to let it

         11  be known that we want the R2 zone.  So we are again

         12  requesting that this be down- zoned to R2 instead of

         13  the R3X.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Could you go to

         15  the map and just sort of point to the section that

         16  you're talking about for us?

         17                 MS. ATWELL: Okay.  I believe I did

         18  give a map here, but  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You have to talk

         20  into the mic. You can pull the mic with you.  Just

         21  pick it up.

         22                 MS. ATWELL: Okay.  All right.  This

         23  is Hollis Avenue.  This is 191st Street, and we're

         24  just asking it to go along to 104th Avenue.  That's

         25  this avenue.  As I said, it's just 11 homes, but the
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          2  R2 would conform with the other side of Hollis

          3  Avenue.  As I said, the homes are basically the

          4  same.  They're larger than the required 40 by 100

          5  lot size.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          7  Sandra, can you come back a second?  Council Member

          8  Katz has a question for you.  What I'd like to do

          9   --  Is City Planning still here?  I'd like to call

         10  you back to sort of comment on this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Quick question

         12  for you.  My understanding is that an R3X, at least

         13  in my community, is much preferred to R3- 2 in

         14  almost any area of my area.  So the question --

         15                 MS. ATWELL: To R3- 2?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes.

         17                 MS. ATWELL: No, we're asking for R2.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I understand.

         19  Right now though, it's an R3- 2, and the application

         20  was certified at an R3X, right?

         21                 MS. ATWELL: Yes, it was certified.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Which means that

         23  an R2 is out of scope legally.  So the question I

         24  have  --

         25                 MS. ATWELL: Okay.  What makes it out
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          2  of scope?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's a technical

          4  thing that the actual final result can only be

          5  basically what is between the certified or really

          6  the applicant, but in this case it would be the

          7  certification, and what it ultimately ended up

          8  being, or what it originally was.  So it has to be

          9  within that time.  So my question is really though,

         10  R3X, at least my area, we much prefer an R3X to an

         11  R3- 2.  So the question is whether you looked at

         12  that aspect of it at all?

         13                 MS. ATWELL: Yes, we did, and what

         14  happened is there was a problem with one piece of

         15  property, and second home was put on the lot.  This

         16  is what we want to avoid, and noting the lot sizes

         17  on that side of the street, it would be a lot easier

         18  for them to put in the second home.  This is what we

         19  want to avoid.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right, but

         21  again, I'm really just trying to get a sense because

         22  you seem to know about this stuff.  So my question

         23  is have you guys looked at whether an R3X from your

         24  perspective would be better than an R3- 2?

         25                 MS. ATWELL: Yes, we did look at that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the answer

          3  is?

          4                 MS. ATWELL: After further researching

          5  the size of the lots on that side of Hollis Avenue,

          6  we feel that the R- 2 would be better.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

          8  Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I have City

         10  Planning come back, and explain the logic and what

         11  happened in this situation?

         12                 MR. HOLBROOK: Ms. Atwell is referring

         13  to Hollis Avenue, which is here on this map.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please

         15  reintroduce yourself for the record.

         16                 MR. HOLBROOK: I'm sorry.  Rob

         17  Holbrook from the Department of City Planning for

         18  Community Board 12.  Again, on the larger map, this

         19  is the area in question.  I actually have a blow up.

         20    To re- orient you  --  I had some foresight.  This

         21  is Hollis Avenue here and then 99th Avenue is the

         22  boundary of the area.  The existing R2 is this area

         23  of Ms. Atwell's block association, and across Hollis

         24  Avenue today is R3- 2.  We're proposing an R3X, and

         25  her request is from the boundary of this R3- 2 zone.
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          2    There are some attached homes on 99th Avenue, so

          3  we're leaving the R3- 2 where those homes exist.

          4  Along Hollis Avenue to the north, we extend this R2

          5  to the other side of the street.  This map is

          6  showing building type and occupancy.  The light

          7  yellow is the single- family detached homes.  The

          8  light sort of green is the two- family detached

          9  homes.  The brown is the multi- family.  The orange

         10  is the attached character.  So you see on the north

         11  side of this area between 104th and roughly 100th

         12  Avenue, there are 11 homes in total, three of them

         13  are two- family homes and the remainder are single-

         14  family detached.  However, we feel that the

         15  conformance compliance is very low for that area.

         16  Only four of those homes in total meet the

         17  conformance compliance.  The main issue is although

         18  they are 40 feet frontage on Hollis Avenue, they are

         19  only 37 feet wide.  The frontage doesn't equate to

         20  the width of the lot.  So they're really too narrow

         21  for the R2 district.  They are appropriate for the

         22  R3X which has a 30 foot requirement.  So really when

         23  we change that from an R3X to R2, the conformance

         24  drops drastically.

         25                 In addition, there are really only
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          2  two homes which could be subdivided under the R3X.

          3  They are roughly 90 foot wide lots.  They would also

          4  be able to be subdivided under the R2 district.  So

          5  by making that reduction from an R3X to an R2, we

          6  don't really have any additional protection, and

          7  it's not really appropriate for the conformance.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What would be, if

          9  you were to do this, the compliance rate if you went

         10  to R2?

         11                 MR. HOLBROOK: Four out of 11, that's

         12  roughly 30 percent.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So more than 50

         14  percent would be out of compliance?

         15                 MR. HOLBROOK: Most definitely.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Which is, in

         17  effect, something that we discourage.

         18                 MR. HOLBROOK: That's right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.  Council

         20  Member Comrie.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Again, I want

         22  to commend City Planning.  We really looked at this

         23  issue.  We tried to work it out for the Hollis

         24  11423, but it is out of compliance.  You know the

         25  homeowners would not be able to build or create an
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          2  R2 on the existing lots.  If you look at the details

          3  here, the lot sizes are 43 by  --  They are strange

          4  lots.  They're irregular lots.  They're larger lots.

          5    You know 64 by 92, 42 by 107, most of the lots are

          6  not within the proper size to redo an R2, and it

          7  just would not work.

          8                 I want to commend again Rob and John

          9  and Debra.  We walked through that area and tried to

         10  figure it out.  I know that area well.  I actually

         11  live right at the bottom of the map there. So you

         12  know I'm going through Hollis Avenue there.  That's

         13  my most regular run when I'm returning home.  We

         14  tried to look at it.  It's just not in compliance.

         15  So we tried, and they really looked at it and we

         16  broke it down, but it just doesn't work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I mean clearly

         18  with all the rezonings that we've done, we always

         19  look for a very high compliance rate.  So the fact

         20  that it would be less than 50 percent compliance is

         21  really an issue, and obviously City Planning feels,

         22  and you agree, and certainly so do I that you cannot

         23  do that. Thank you.

         24                 Any other questions, comments?

         25  Anybody else signed up to speak on this item?  You
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          2  have to sit down and re- introduce yourself.

          3                 MS. ATWELL: Sandra Atwell, Hollis

          4  11423 Block Association.  According to the zoning

          5  manual, the requirement for an R2 zone is a lot at

          6  least 40 by 100.  I don't understand why this

          7  doesn't comply.  It's falls within the 40 by 100.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think City

          9  Planning has said that even though the frontage on

         10  some of these lots are 40 by 100, it actually

         11  becomes very narrow as the lot goes further back

         12  into the block, if I'm correct.  I can tell you

         13  having done a lot of these, and I think you know I

         14  am very supportive of the down zonings.  I feel City

         15  Planning doesn't go far enough in most cases, but we

         16  can't change a block that's going to have 40 percent

         17  compliance.  That means six or seven out of the 11

         18  are going to be out of compliance, and I don't think

         19  those homeowners would really appreciate having the

         20  zoning change to a point where they can't do

         21  anything with their home in the future without a

         22  variance.

         23                 So I understand your concerns, and I

         24  know Council Member Comrie does, and I would be the

         25  first one to say to City Planning why aren't you
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          2  doing this.  I have done it in similar situations,

          3  but in this case, I think they just can't do it.  I

          4  think we agree with their analysis.

          5                 MS. ATWELL: Even though the square

          6  footage shows that it's 40 by 100?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well I think what

          8  we'll do is let's give Sandra, Council Member Comrie

          9  and myself a complete analysis of those lots so we

         10  can show her exactly how all those other properties

         11  are going to be out of compliance.  Thank you.

         12                 MS. ATWELL: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Close the public

         14  hearing on this item.  We will now move on to the

         15  next item which is Land Use No. 546 and 547,

         16  commonly referred to Kings Material, which is in

         17  Council Member De Blasio's district.

         18                 Chairman Avella, members of the

         19  Council, my name is Adam Rothkrug.  I'm here this

         20  morning in connection with a rezoning and a special

         21  permit application filed on behalf of Kings Material

         22  for approval to extend an existing R6 zoning

         23  district which will eliminate an existing M1- 2

         24  zoning district in Community Board 12 on 15th Avenue

         25  between 37th and 38th Street in Brooklyn.
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          2                 The special permit application is

          3  required to permit residential use of a portion of

          4  the site on 37th Street, which was formerly part of

          5  the Culver El Railroad right- of- way.

          6                 The proposed actions will permit the

          7  development of Kings Material storage yard with a

          8  residential development appropriate with the current

          9  uses and recent development in the surrounding area,

         10  which includes an R6 zoning district immediately

         11  south of the premises as well as R6 residential

         12  zoning along the opposite side of 15th Avenue as

         13  well a substantial amount of existing non-

         14  conforming residential development within the

         15  current M1- 2 district.

         16                 Despite their location within a

         17  manufacturing zone, residential development is

         18  prevalent throughout the surrounding area including

         19  the Culver Estates development, an HPD project

         20  located in an adjacent part of the Culver El.  This

         21  has led to an influx of many young families with

         22  young children and concerns with respect to safety

         23  noise and impacts created by the Material storage

         24  yard and the trucks that service that residential

         25  portion.  There's also a large public park one block
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          2  away from this site which generates a lot of

          3  pedestrian traffic.

          4                 Relocation of Kings uses to more

          5  appropriate locations in Brooklyn and reasonable

          6  redevelopment of their existing property will

          7  eliminate a significant amount of truck traffic,

          8  noise, dust and it will act as a buffer between the

          9  existing residential uses and some of the remaining

         10  manufacturing uses west of 15th Avenue.

         11                 Kings Material is not leaving

         12  Brooklyn.  They will remain a significant employer

         13  and a generator of tax revenue within Brooklyn and

         14  the City of New York.

         15                 Working with Councilman De Blasio's

         16  office very closely, Kings and Councilman De Blasio

         17  and some of the other members of the Council have

         18  come up with a letter of agreement whereby we have

         19  agreed to provide 20 percent of the units within

         20  this proposed building will be devoted affordable

         21  housing.  We've agreed that we will work with HPD to

         22  provide housing units that meet or do not exceed 130

         23  percent of the adjusted median income in the area.

         24  This will serve a tremendous need for affordable

         25  housing in this Borough Park community.  Kings is
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          2  happy to do that in a desire that has, again, been

          3  supported by the Community Board, the Borough

          4  President and certainly Councilman De Blasio, and

          5  I'm very pleased that we were able to work with his

          6  office and staff in order to reach this agreement.

          7  I'd be happy to answer any questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member De

          9  Blasio was here a few minutes ago.  We are trying to

         10  locate him.  He may not have realized this item was

         11  going to be on at this particular moment, and I know

         12  he wanted to say something.  The last conversation I

         13  had with him that he was in negotiations with the

         14  applicant and I think I going to leave his comments

         15  to him.  I have not seen the letter of the agreement

         16  that you refer to.

         17                 MR. ROTHKRUG: I apologize.  I didn't

         18  make multiple copies, but if we're waiting for him,

         19  I could go through the terms pretty quickly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Why don't we

         21  suspend temporarily this application  --  He's here.

         22    I'm just at the point where I would call upon you

         23  for your comments about the application, Council

         24  Member.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Chair
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          2  Avella, thank you for your patience.  I was detained

          3  by a philosophical conversation with Gail Benjamin.

          4  I want to thank you Chair Avella, and, of course,

          5  Chair Katz.  You've both been extremely helpful

          6  these last days as we've talked about a number of

          7  items, but this one being one of them an important

          8  one in our community.

          9                 I just want to say at the outset I

         10  think a lot of people are familiar with the Borough

         11  Park community and know that it is extremely heavily

         12  populated and only becoming more so all the time,

         13  that there aren't a lot of development opportunities

         14  left in the community and certainly there are

         15  precious few opportunities to create affordable

         16  housing.  This is a community that has substantial

         17  lower income population and need of affordable

         18  housing and particularly of larger, multiple bedroom

         19  units.

         20                 The community, as expressed through

         21  the vote of Community Board 12, made very, very

         22  clear as this item came up originally that

         23  affordable housing was a crucial need, and that was

         24  later ratified by the Borough President.  I am very

         25  pleased that the developer has heard that concern
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          2  from the community and has come forward with a plan

          3  to create 20 percent affordable housing and

          4  particularly again with a focus on some larger

          5  units.

          6                 With the advice of both of the

          7  Chairs, I've been try to be helpful working with the

          8  developer to connect them with HPD and look at any

          9  and all possible ways of facilitating the affordable

         10  housing.  From what I've seen in the last few days,

         11  a lot of progress is being made and it looks like

         12  there will be a good practical way to resolve that.

         13  I think everyone in these last days is certainly

         14  acting in good faith, and I commend that.  I do want

         15  to say that it's important we follow through on that

         16  and finish this process specifically and clearly.

         17                 I do understand that the developer is

         18  filing an outline of the agreement with the State

         19  Attorney General's office, which is important, and I

         20  appreciate.  I just want to make sure and I will do

         21  everything in my power that we finish the details

         22  here in a productive and specific way and make sure

         23  that we follow through, but the bottom line is I

         24  think we should support this action because it

         25  really will not only open up some important market
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          2  rate housing opportunities for a community that

          3  needs it, but also in particular this community

          4  desire for more and more affordable housing will me

          5  bet, and that's extremely helpful.  So thank you,

          6  Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Any

          8  questions from --  I shouldn't even ask the

          9  question.  Council Member Felder.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         11  much. Normally, the applicants distribute some

         12  material that we can look at.  I didn't get

         13  anything, so I respect Councilman De Blasio's

         14  opinion on this, but it would be helpful for us to

         15  see what you're talking about in terms of the maps

         16  and what you're doing certainly before the Land Use

         17  meeting.

         18                 I just want to know, the apartments

         19  that you talked about, how large are these

         20  apartments?

         21                 MR. ROTHKRUG: The average apartment

         22  will probably be over 1,000 square feet.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm not good

         24  at numbers.  I'm only a CPA.  Can you tell me how

         25  many bedrooms?  What does that work out to be, in
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          2  general?

          3                 MR. ROTHKRUG: Yes.  I'm sorry.  The

          4  R6 provides a variety of apartment types, so we're

          5  figuring everything from mostly two and three

          6  bedroom units of a minimum of 1,000 square feet.

          7  For practical purposes, the R6 zoning in the

          8  district would permit a maximum of 79 units, but

          9  we're proposing this building will probably come in

         10  at something at about 45 units.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So the 45

         12  units would be only two and three bedroom units?

         13                 MR. ROTHKRUG: There may be some four

         14  bedroom units as well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Are there

         16  going to be any one bedroom units?  Are there going

         17  to be studio apartments?

         18                 MR. ROTHKRUG: We don't see any

         19  studios, and probably not any one bedrooms.  If any

         20  one bedrooms, it would be a very small number and

         21  that would just be dictated in by fitting  --  I'm

         22  sorry.  No one bedrooms either.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: The other

         24  thing is you said it's on 15th between 37th and

         25  38th.  Is this is on the side of the playground or
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          2  on the other side?

          3                 MR. ROTHKRUG: The other side.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Is this on the

          5  side where you currently have some buildings?

          6                 MR. ROTHKRUG: The playground is

          7  indicated in green. This is the Material storage

          8  yard.  Kings has owned other property here that they

          9  had offices that they are in the process of

         10  developing residential units as of right under the

         11  R6.  This side of 15th is R6 already.  This is the

         12  side we're seeking the zoning change on.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And what's

         14  with the parking? I'm just curious.  What are the

         15  parking accommodations?

         16                 MR. ROTHKRUG: Under the R6, we're

         17  required to provide 50 percent parking, but actually

         18  we own some additional space within the Culver El

         19  that's not going to be included within the rezoning

         20  that we will be able to use for accessory parking.

         21  So we'll be providing off- street parking that

         22  exceeds the zoning requirement.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Councilman De

         24  Blasio, I just want to make sure, since we sort of

         25  share a community that's very congested, the
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          2  agreements about the parking to make sure  --  I'm

          3  hoping that that's part of the agreement that

          4  they've given you  -- the accessory parking.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: Yes.  I'm

          6  glad you're raising it, again because as I think

          7  indicated subtly in my remarks there's been some

          8  evolution in the last days.  So let me join you in

          9  asking, as we do share this community, could we just

         10  restate, so we'll all hearing very clearly, what the

         11  plan is around parking?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And then

         13  finally, Councilman De Blasio was successful in the

         14  37th Street that really doesn't have any sidewalks

         15  or the street itself has been bad.  I compliment him

         16  on that for finally getting that done.  I don't know

         17  how the infrastructure of that street that everyone

         18  knows about which is on the side of your building

         19  that's in horrendous shape and you know with your

         20  construction and the sewers and whatever else

         21  because it seems to be a very, very troublesome spot

         22  period how you're going to work those things out

         23  with that wonderful project that you're doing.

         24                 MR. ROTHKRUG: Well I can also state,

         25  again, that we own not only the 100 foot frontage,
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          2  but we own an additional 50 feet.  So at least up to

          3  150 feet there will be all new curbs and sidewalks

          4  as per DOT requirements.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No the point

          6  that I'm making is one that many of my colleagues

          7  have made repeatedly about the general problem of

          8  infrastructure in the City when construction is

          9  done.  So that right now the sewers are a problem on

         10  that block, and thanks to Councilman De Blasio

         11  things are going to get better. If you're going to

         12  do major construction there, I think there should be

         13  some collaboration because it doesn't make sense to

         14  put up 45 apartments with bathrooms and showers and

         15  everything else in a place that can't hold what  --

         16  I don't know if Kings  --  Kings does have a

         17  bathroom.  I know that, but I don't know if Kings

         18  has any showers in the property right now and

         19  something has to be done to work on these things in

         20  the future.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Seeing no other

         22  questions, thank you gentlemen.  I do not see

         23  anybody signed up to speak on this item.  So I'll

         24  close the public hearing, and we will move the next

         25  item which is Land Use No. 573 through 575, commonly
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          2  referred to 400 5th Avenue.

          3                 We'll remind Committee members, we

          4  still have two other items after this one, and I

          5  neglected to announce that Council Member Helen

          6  Sears had joined us earlier.

          7                 MR. SILLERMAN: Good morning, Mr.

          8  Chair and members of the Committee my name is

          9  Michael Sillerman from Kramer Levin Counsel for the

         10  applicant.  This application seeks a zoning text

         11  change and special permits under Section 74- 79 in

         12  connection with the construction of 57- story

         13  residential hotel and retail building at 400 5th

         14  Avenue designed by Guathuey Siegel and Associates,

         15  and pictured behind me, the site is a block located

         16  on West 36th and West 37th Street between 5th and

         17  6th Avenue.

         18                 74- 49 is one of the two important

         19  preservation mechanisms by special permit in the

         20  Zoning Resolution.  It's been used much less

         21  frequently than 74- 711, which you're probably more

         22  familiar with.  This is the first time it has been

         23  used since 1990, but it permits transfer from a

         24  designated landmark across a street or to an

         25  adjacent block to permit its floor area to be
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          2  utilized. The landmark in question here is the old

          3  Tiffany building, 401 5th Avenue, a very important

          4  landmark by McKim Mead & White.

          5                 This is a very unique urban site in

          6  that there is another designated landmark, 404 5th

          7  Avenue, adjacent to our building and across the

          8  street on the same side of the street as another

          9  McKim Mead & White building.

         10                 The special permit and the zoning

         11  text amendments enable here a building which has

         12  been heralded for its superior design.  We think

         13  it's clearly preferable to an as of right setback

         14  building.  The zoning actions here involve a special

         15  permit for the transfer, height and setback waivers

         16  and modifications of the streetscape and 5th Avenue

         17  Special District requirements.  We're seeking a text

         18  amendment here because 74- 79 was adopted very early

         19  in 1969.  It did not have provisions to allow

         20  modification of the Midtown zoning requirements

         21  which came about in 1982, and the waivers we're

         22  seeking here help the building to harmonize with the

         23  urban context and with the landmark across the

         24  street.

         25                 We're pleased that the Community
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          2  Board, the Borough President and the City Planning

          3  Commission all supported this application, and we

          4  respectfully ask for your favorable consideration.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It is also

          7  supported by the Speaker whose district this is.

          8  Any questions from Committee members?  Council

          9  Member Helen Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just one.  What

         11  are those panels on the top, the very top?

         12                 MR. SILLERMAN: Could I ask the

         13  architect, Greg Karn to answer this?

         14                 MR. KARN: Hi.  I'm Greg Karn with

         15  Guathuey Siegel and the intent of the top of the

         16  building is that it would be a system of linen

         17  finished stainless steel panels that are at a slight

         18  angle and would be subtle uplit from behind the

         19  parapet just below the panels allowing it to create

         20  sort of a inverted cone that would illuminated at

         21  night.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So they're

         23  behind the parapet?

         24                 MR. KARN: The lighting is behind the

         25  parapet.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Those are on

          3  the parapet?

          4                 MR. KARN: Excuse me.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The panels are

          6  on the parapet?

          7                 MR. KARN: The panels are actually

          8  enclosing a mechanical equipment area at the top of

          9  the building.  So it effectively forms a screen

         10  while creating a kind of a crown effect.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But they're not

         12  on the parapet?  That was my concern.  I couldn't

         13  identify what they were. I thank you.

         14                 MR. SILLERMAN: I just wanted to show

         15  the building in context in relation to the Empire

         16  State Building, which we're not taller than.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         18  questions from Council Members?  Seeing none, thank

         19  you gentlemen.

         20                 I see no one signed up to speak on

         21  the public hearing on this item.  As a result, I

         22  will close the public hearing, and we will move on

         23  to the next item which is 15- 41 Text Amendment

         24  application submitted by 150 Charles Street Holding

         25  for an amendment of the modification of applicable
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          2  open space and height factor requirements for

          3  enlargements of residential conversions of non-

          4  residential buildings.

          5                 MR. SILLERMAN: Mr. Chair and members

          6  of the Committee, Michael Sillerman of Kramer Levin,

          7  Counsel for the applicant.  This is an application

          8  that seeks a zoning text change to the so- called

          9  Loft Conversion Rules of Article 1, Chapter 5 to

         10  permit greater flexibility in the conversion and

         11  enlargement of non- residential buildings built

         12  prior to 1961.

         13                 The text amendment is a preservation

         14  tool which would allow for the retention of

         15  buildings that might otherwise be torn down to build

         16  taller height factor buildings.  It would apply in

         17  the 12 Community Board shown on the map where the

         18  pre- '61 loft provisions are applicable.  We have

         19  briefed all 16 members who are affected by this

         20  provision.  We've been very pleased by the overall

         21  very positive reaction to this new mechanism which

         22  will create an hybrid and will be very strongly a

         23  preservation tool.

         24                 If I could flip to the next board,

         25  sometimes a cliche has validity, and a picture is
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          2  worth a thousand words.  The whole focus of this

          3  zoning text amendment is when you have a high

          4  coverage loft- type building as shown in the right

          5  panel.  The zoning mechanism in R6 through R9

          6  districts allows you to build an as- of- right

          7  height factor 30- story building, and if you don't

          8  want to build this, if you want to build something

          9  smaller, there is not currently a mechanism for

         10  doing this.  This text amendment creates that

         11  mechanism by authorization.  So it's not an as- of-

         12  right mechanism.  It's comes back to the Community

         13  Board.  It comes back to the Council, and it's an

         14  alternative to preserving the existing context and

         15  not building a so- called tower in a park building.

         16                 The specifics of this application and

         17  its consequences will be explained by the project

         18  architect, Rick Cook.

         19                 MR. COOK: Thank you.  Richard Cook,

         20  Cook + Fox Architects.  We had the unique challenge

         21  of trying to find the right answer for this high lot

         22  coverage building.  What we did was --  In the image

         23  that you see right here is a diagram right out of

         24  the zoning handbook showing the tower in a park

         25  regulation showing open space and towers.  The image
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          2  on the right is a modification from the Zoning

          3  Handbook showing if you had a three- story building

          4  which you wanted to leave, you'd end up with a lower

          5  profile building.

          6                 Our specific test case is just off of

          7  West Street. You can see the three taller buildings

          8  that are here are all as- of right height factor

          9  buildings.  Our site is directly to the south of

         10  that behind the buildings on West Street.  This

         11  photograph is taken from the pier.  You can see in

         12  the background a height- factor building and a

         13  zoning envelope building behind that.

         14                 We thought that this was not the

         15  right solution for this particular site what was

         16  generally known as the Whitehall Warehouse building,

         17  and we actually thought that there were several

         18  things that could happen if we retained the street

         19  wall fabric of this warehouse and actually converted

         20  it to a series of rowhouses so that they would

         21  engage with the street.  There would be Jane Jacobs

         22  eyes on the street.  So we've actually setback the

         23  mass 30 feet.  We did a series of computer

         24  animations seeing exactly what you would see from

         25  the street.  So all of the mass was setback 30 feet.

                                                            65

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 A large component of this text

          3  amendment is something called superior landscaping

          4  with a significant amount of green roofs.  Our work

          5  is focused in on sustainability and environmental

          6  responsibility, and one of the things that we think

          7  will be quite beautiful here is the addition of

          8  street trees and very significant green roofs.  This

          9  is an aerial view looking straight down on the

         10  project with the river off to the right.

         11                 Very quickly, on your left on the as-

         12  of- right height factor buildings, and our proposal

         13  is the lower building, the earthy- colored lower

         14  building built on top of the Whitehall Warehouse.

         15                 In summary, what we're saying is that

         16  under the current zoning, the one of the right is an

         17  as- of- right development, and currently, the one to

         18  the left, which we're proposing is not as- of- right

         19  and that's the purpose of this text amendment.  We

         20  think it gives greater flexibility for interesting

         21  architecture in urban environments, and, again, it

         22  is an authorization so the Community Board would see

         23  it again.  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         25  from Council Members?  You have to go into that.
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          2  You have to explain that.

          3                 MR. COOK: The sketch that's here is

          4  actually the first design sketch that we did.  The

          5  height factors buildings I've referenced are known

          6  as oftentimes called the Richard Meier Towers, and

          7  as an architect, we're working in that context.  So

          8  when we met with Scott and Steve, the partners, we

          9  said that we were very happy to let them take the

         10  forefront, the white tuxedos on the forefront, and

         11  we were happy to defer to those and to step back

         12  into the background and that was our design

         13  inspiration.  That was our sketch and that's our

         14  proposal.  Thank you for asking.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I've already seen

         16  that several times.  Any other comments, questions?

         17  Council Member Katz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just wanted to

         19  note for the record during the discussions that we

         20  had that if a tall building was the preferred then

         21  can be an out with a permit application, correct?

         22  So the original can still work.  I was a little

         23  concerned about that considering the context of the

         24  entire City.  So, I just wanted to put that on the

         25  record.  Thank you.  I think that this is a good
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          2  plan.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So do I.  Council

          4  Member Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.  I

          6  like your presentation.  Knowing what you can do and

          7  knowing what you want to do, those are two different

          8  things.  Now, the Community Board. Basically, did

          9  you go in front of the Community Board?

         10                 MR. SILLERMAN: This applied to 12

         11  Community Boards, 11 committees at the Land Use

         12  level were in favor of it, generally unanimously.

         13  One Community Board, the full board did not end up

         14  supporting it and I think one board did not take a

         15  position.  One or two boards did not take a

         16  position.  So for a City- wide text amendment we

         17  thought that was a pretty good result.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And the

         19  Community Boards that you are making reference to

         20  are in Lower Manhattan and part of Brooklyn based on

         21  the map that you showed there.  The Community Boards

         22  are in red.  Is that correct?

         23                 MR. SILLERMAN: Right.  In the places

         24  where there are loft buildings and there are rules

         25  for there conversion.
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          2                 I should say this does not, in any

          3  sense, create an opening to gentrify a manufacturing

          4  building to residential where it's not already

          5  permitted by zoning.  It's strictly to allow you to

          6  have an alternative to building a tower.  It's in

          7  districts where residential is already allowed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I am curious

          9  as to  --  You said one Community Board did not go

         10  along with the plan.  I'm curious as to what board

         11  was that?

         12                 MR. SILLERMAN: Brooklyn 2 at the full

         13  board level. The committee was unanimously in favor

         14  of it.  Our understanding of it was that it was the

         15  complexity which wasn't appreciated at the full

         16  board level.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So under the

         18  current zoning plan, you could build a tower that

         19  goes up how high?

         20                 MR. SILLERMAN: On a site like this,

         21  30 stories with open space which typically can be

         22  the tarred roof of the top of a supermarket.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But you're

         24  planning green roofs, is that correct?

         25                 MR. SILLERMAN: This adds a
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          2  requirement that there be superior landscaping.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Superior

          4  landscaping, and what about as far as green

          5  buildings as far as LEED certification, since you're

          6  talking about green roofs which is environmental?

          7  I'm just asking the question.

          8                 MR. SILLERMAN: To this architect,

          9  that's almost a law because these architects are

         10  probably the most committed in the City to green

         11  technology and this will be a LEED's Gold

         12  residential building.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Excellent.

         14  Well I do appreciate the fact that you had the

         15  picture showing from the top down of what it would

         16  look like and you saw all of that green compared to

         17  black or silver asphalt where you would normally

         18  see. So on behalf of individuals that want to see

         19  more environmental friendly buildings and more green

         20  spaces, let me just thank you for moving towards

         21  more environmental- friendly aspects rather than

         22  saying well we have the right to go up as far as we

         23  can and that's what we're going to do and not

         24  consider other options.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Seeing no other
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          2  questions, thank you gentlemen.

          3                 I do not see anybody signed up to

          4  speak on the public hearing, so I will close this

          5  matter, and we will move on to the last, but

          6  certainly not least, application, an application by

          7  MSK Properties, LLC for the amendment of the zoning

          8  map commonly referred to as the Bay Ridge Mixed- Use

          9  District.

         10                 MR. MINKIN: Good morning, honorable

         11  Chairman Avella and Council Members.  My name is

         12  Irving Minkin.  I'm an associate with the Sheldon

         13  Lobel, a Land Use firm.  Our firm prepared the two

         14  ULURP applications before you, Council Nos.

         15  060354ZSK and 060353ZMK.

         16                 Application 354ZSK relates to a

         17  proposed mixed- use project on the site of a

         18  permanently discontinued railroad yard, consisting

         19  of a one- story and mezzanine large retail

         20  establishment, which will be Home Depot, an office

         21  floor and eight residential floors accommodating 216

         22  dwelling units and three parking levels, two of

         23  which are below curb level.  The project site has an

         24  area of 160,000 square feet, larger than the area of

         25  many City blocks, and located between 7th and 8th
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          2  Avenues, the southerly railroad right of- way of the

          3  Bay Ridge Branch of the LIRR and the MTA N- line and

          4  buildings fronting on 64th Street.

          5                 The proposed rezoning of the project

          6  site is from M1- 1 District to a C4- 2 District to

          7  permit the component and to facilitate the proposed

          8  bulk.  The proposed rezoning of the portion of the

          9  block containing the building fronting on 64th

         10  Street is from M1- 2 and M1- 1 Districts to a C4- 2A

         11  District would be consistent with the existing

         12  primarily commercial health- related uses of these

         13  parcels and would facilitate their off- site parking

         14  in the project site.

         15                 The required findings in Section 74-

         16  681 for the special permit have been met and my

         17  presentation articulates the compliance with the

         18  zoning provisions, and I won't burden the

         19  Subcommittee with the facts.  Its' self-

         20  explanatory.

         21                 The proposed project will have a

         22  total zoning floor area of 545,000 square feet,

         23  including 104,000 square feet of retail floor area

         24  for Home Depot, 60,000 square feet of office area,

         25  270,000 square feet of residential floor area and
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          2  111,000 of accessory parking above 23 feet above

          3  curb level.  The lower two levels do not count.

          4                 In addition, there will be on the

          5  self- parking at the cellar and sub- cellar levels.

          6  A total of 684 required accessory off- street

          7  parking spaces for proposed uses in the project will

          8  be accommodated on the three parking levels as well

          9  as it has an additional 225 permitted accessory

         10  spaces, including off site parking for the buildings

         11  on 64th Street, for a total of 909 spaces.

         12                 Access ramps for the cellar and sub-

         13  cellar levels will be from both 7th and 8th Avenues.

         14    Access for the second floor parking level will be

         15  from 7th Avenue as well as access for the five

         16  loading births provided for the commercial uses.

         17                 The total commercial FAR proposed

         18  equals 1.0.  The same is currently authorized by the

         19  present zone.  The proposed residential FAR equals

         20  2.02, less than that authorized for the extensive

         21  adjacent R6 district to the north.  The number of

         22  dwelling units proposed, 216 apartments, is less

         23  than one half of what the proposed rezoning

         24  authorized for the site.

         25                 The developer has committed himself
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          2  to an affordable housing component equal to 20

          3  percent of the number of dwelling units proposed, or

          4  43 apartments.  My colleague from Greenburg Farrow,

          5  architects for the project, will describe the

          6  architectural design in some detail, and my

          7  colleague from Heineman and Lemonides Environmental

          8  Consultants will address the environmental analysis

          9  highlights.  They will both be available for

         10  questions.

         11                 Mr. Herbet Siegel, our housing

         12  consultant, will give a brief synopsis of the

         13  progress relative to the affordable housing

         14  component, and he will also be available to answer

         15  any questions.

         16                 I, and Mr. Andrew Kohen, President of

         17  MSK Properties, LLC, the developer of the proposed

         18  project, will be available to answer any questions

         19  as well.

         20                 We are all hopeful that the Zoning

         21  and Franchises Subcommittee will vote favorably on

         22  the two applications, which would result in new

         23  housing, new jobs, more retail facilities, and

         24  office expansion availability for the adjacent

         25  health care facilities and for relocation of
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          2  administrative office space from nearby overcrowded

          3  schools.

          4                 I would like to ask Mr. Liguori from

          5  Greenberg Farrow to indicate the architectural

          6  aspects of the project, and I'd also like to bring

          7  to the Council Members' attention the fact that

          8  there are two sets of small scale schematic plans,

          9  one at the rear of the package immediately behind

         10  the City Planning report are the drawing numbers

         11  referred to in the Special Permit Report.  The

         12  several other drawings that are immediately behind

         13  the Zoning Map Report show aerial views and

         14  pictorially demonstrate the zoning map amendments

         15  that I believe paint a very clear picture for the

         16  Committee.

         17                 MR. LIGUORI: Hello, Chair Avella,

         18  Council Members. I'm John Liguori from Greenberg

         19  Farrow, the architectural firm.  If you would just

         20  look up at the board here, I'll describe a little

         21  bit about the site.  It's very simple.  8th Avenue

         22  is to your right at the east.  7th Avenue is on your

         23  left.  That's west.  This is 64th Street, and at the

         24  top of the site is 61st Street.  Then there is the

         25  Long Island Railroad and BMT line, which is the
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          2  northern border of our site.  Currently, it's a

          3  parking lot that has access off of 8th Avenue at the

          4  corner, near where the MTA train station is.

          5  Currently, it's also kind of a bowl.  It's an area

          6  that's depressed such that the site is lower in

          7  elevation than the adjoining streets.

          8                 The building we're proposing is going

          9  to take advantage of that site in that it has two

         10  levels of parking below. They are approximately

         11  110,000 square feet with 300 parking spaces a piece,

         12  and it has access from 8th Avenue to the cellar

         13  level and sub- cellar level as well as from the 7th

         14  Avenue side which equally has that same access.

         15                 Above the two levels which are

         16  sub-grade is a commercial space, retail space, that

         17  is 104,000 square feet.  Above that is another level

         18  of parking approximately the same size as the other

         19  two, 110,000 holding approximately 300 cars.  Total

         20  for the site is 909 cars.  Above that is 60,000

         21  square feet of office space, above that are seven

         22  levels of residential tower including an eighth

         23  level penthouse.  It's setback ten feet from the

         24  property line.  There's a 17- foot to 18- foot

         25  sidewalk.  In addition to that, we've pulled the
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          2  building back an additional ten feet.  So you have a

          3  fairly light sidewalk at that point.  At the top

          4  here, there's an eight- foot setback as well on the

          5  top level.

          6                 These are just two views cut in

          7  different direction. This is the longitudinal, and

          8  then the one up at the top is showing it where you

          9  cut it closer to the tower where you actually see

         10  the tower wrapping around.  This is actually a

         11  better view where it shows how the site contours

         12  coming down and then going back up to 7th Avenue,

         13  this being the 8th Avenue side.

         14                 Vehicular traffic can enter off of

         15  8th Avenue, and that's through either the cellar

         16  level here, or the cellar level here, or go down

         17  further to the sub-cellar level there.

         18                 You can see how the orientation is

         19  taking full advantage of this site in terms of its

         20  volume because it's actually set down into the site

         21  it has the appearance of not being an 11 story

         22  building, but more like a nine-story building.

         23                 It's a tripartite design, which

         24  basically means that it has three different portions

         25  of the facade, that it starts out as cast stone at
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          2  the base, it has brick and windows above that in the

          3  body of the building, similar to a lot of the

          4  residential buildings in the area, and then it's

          5  topped off with a glass setback penthouse floor.

          6                 I want to show you the front

          7  elevation.  This view is basically looking at the

          8  8th Avenue side where the subway entrance is here

          9  and the cast stone and glass entrance to the retail

         10  as it's entered through the side here and two

         11  lobbies, one for residential and one for the office.

         12    This is the body of the towner which is brick in

         13  glazing, and the curtain wall design on the corner

         14  there as well.

         15                 I should point out also the entrance

         16  off of 7th Avenue is over on this side where you see

         17  the parking level for the residential will occur off

         18  of the 7th Avenue here.  On the other side is the

         19  parking for the retail and office space which are

         20  for the lower levels.  So you have two separate

         21  entrances at 7th Avenue and another separate

         22  entrance at 8th Avenue for the two lower level

         23  parking.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This application,

         25  this proposed building lies within Council Member
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          2  Sara Gonzalez' district.  She is thoroughly in favor

          3  of this.  She did communicate to me how she likes

          4  the project, and she appreciates how the applicant

          5  worked with the community to get to this point.

          6                 Any questions from Committee members?

          7    Council Member Sears.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just one.  Is

          9  there going to be a little refurbishing of the

         10  subway station there because it's right next  --  on

         11  8th Avenue?  Is it going to be in keeping with the

         12  modernization that's going on?  Is there any

         13  commitment to just redo it a little bit?

         14                 MR. SILLERMAN: Right now, the MTA has

         15  advised us that they are going to be opening a 7th

         16  Avenue end of that station in approximately two

         17  years.  So that will take a lot of the pedestrian

         18  traffic and bring it over to 7th Avenue.  Right now,

         19  people have to travel around this enormous super

         20  block as it is from the beginning of 64th Street,

         21  going up to 61st Street and 7th and 8th Avenues.  So

         22  that will cut the pedestrian travel for a lot of

         23  people in half.

         24                 The design of the front of the

         25  building is such that it widens the sidewalk so that
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          2  it takes the occupants and people who travel to this

          3  building off their regular sidewalk which is already

          4  wide as it is.  The MTA obviously is going to review

          5  the drawings before we go anywhere so that it's

          6  going to be compatible with the MTA requirements in

          7  all respects.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Does that mean

          9  that they'll be looking at that facility, the 8th

         10  Avenue one?  I'm familiar with it.  That's why I'm

         11  asking.

         12                 MR. SILLERMAN: They're going to look

         13  at that. They're going to look at everything that we

         14  presented to the City Planning Commission and the

         15  City Council, and obviously if they want any kind of

         16  revisions to satisfy them, it'll be done. Obviously,

         17  we hope it will not modify the architectural aspects

         18  or any fundamental design criteria of this project.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         22  questions, comments? Seeing none, thank you

         23  gentlemen.

         24                 We do have one person signed up to

         25  speak in opposition, Michael Driscoll.
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          2                 MR. DRISCOLL: Thank you, Chairperson.

          3    My name is Michael G. Driscoll.  I am the Acting

          4  President of the 61st Street Block Association of

          5  the 600 Block.  I respectfully request that this

          6  petition to rezone these parcels be denied.  This

          7  development does not meet the burden of benefit for

          8  the community for the following reasons.

          9                 The proposed building is too large

         10  for the neighborhood.  It is proposed to be 11

         11  stories in a two to three story neighborhood.

         12                 The project will generate

         13  approximately 1,500 vehicles per day without an

         14  Environmental Impact Study or an adequate traffic

         15  mitigation plan.  These vehicles will have an impact

         16  on the children at P.S. 69, which is downwind of

         17  this project.  The developer has stated that he will

         18  fund a study after the project is built.  The

         19  federal government requires an Environmental Impact

         20  Study before the first shovel of earth is turned.

         21  Why is this project different?

         22                 Since MSK Properties is a corporate

         23  entity, there is no guarantee that they will be

         24  viable after the building is completed.  Who will

         25  pay for that traffic study?
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          2                 Over 170 units in this project will

          3  be valued as luxury apartments.  Just over 40 units

          4  will be valued as market rate apartments

          5  masquerading as affordable housing.

          6                 Over 200 jobs are at risk for the

          7  sake of a big box store's possible 150 menial jobs.

          8                 In conclusion, I believe that both

          9  local Council Members were misled by the developer

         10  into believing that this project would enhance the

         11  community on several levels.  In fact, the

         12  approximate yearly rental income of $6 million

         13  dollars with tax incentive advantages will be

         14  windfall profits for the developer and his

         15  investors, not for the community or the City.

         16                 As I see it, the Council has four

         17  options.  Deny the rezoning as Community Board 10's

         18  sub- committee recommended to their board; require

         19  MSK Properties to pay for a DOT traffic study before

         20  any work is allowed; require MSK Properties to place

         21  $1 million dollars in escrow to cover the DOT

         22  traffic study after the project is completed; or

         23  allow this rezoning and live with the consequences

         24  for 40 or 50 years.

         25                 In addition, although this is not in
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          2  opposition report, I would like to know why the two

          3  local Council Members have been so forceful in their

          4  desire to see these zoning changes.  One has

          5  championed ULURP 070387 ZMK, Dyker Heights, Fort

          6  Hamilton Rezoning that calls for the downzoning of

          7  159 blocks in the same neighborhood as this project.

          8    The other Council Member has called for a

          9  downzoning in the area of Community Board 10

         10  extending from 3rd Avenue to 8th Avenue where this

         11  project is located, from 40th Street to "the

         12  southern border of Community Board 10" which is

         13  literally abutting the proposed rezonings.  Both

         14  these initiatives are so close to the requested

         15  rezoning as to be considered part of them.  This

         16  begs the question, why are both Council Members so

         17  stridently encouraging the Subcommittee upzone?  I'd

         18  like an answer.

         19                 Any questions?  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         21  from Council Members?  Thank you, sir.

         22                 I think in terms of your comment

         23  about the federal government requires an

         24  Environmental Impact Study it's actually state, but

         25  there is an environmental review done by the
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          2  Department of City Planning, which obviously in this

          3  case ruled  --  It's call the City Environmental

          4  Quality Review  --  that there was no impact.

          5  Obviously, if the City Environmental Quality Review

          6  showed an impact, that would then require a full

          7  EIS, but apparently in this case, City Planning  --

          8  In fact, thanks to staff, after a study, the

          9  potential environmental impact of the proposed

         10  action, the applicant signed a conditional negative

         11  declaration on May 18th stating the following.  We

         12  could give you a copy of this, if you'd like.

         13                 MR. DRISCOLL: What is that condition,

         14  sir?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: There's a number

         16  of conditions here.

         17                 MR. DRISCOLL: That he would pay for a

         18  study of the traffic afterwards?  Sir, I

         19  respectfully submit that there were approximately

         20  two years of study by the applicant's own traffic

         21  safety experts.  The entire traffic mitigation came

         22  up with one traffic light.  There is no provision

         23  for the egress or entrance of traffic on 7th Avenue

         24  at all.  It's is a catcher's catch can entrance way.

         25    That entrance way will be primarily used for the

                                                            84

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  loading of vehicles for both the commercial property

          3  and for the proposed retail space of Home Depot.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I ask you a

          5  question?  Did you make your presentation to the

          6  Community Board?

          7                 MR. DRISCOLL: Yes, sir.  I did.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And can you

          9  explain then why they voted 31 to 9 in favor?

         10                 MR. DRISCOLL: I cannot explain that,

         11  sir, but I can tell you that the Zoning Subcommittee

         12  of Community Board 10 that I attended was unanimous

         13  against this proposal.  That was on a Monday.  On a

         14  Wednesday, the proposal came before the Community

         15  Board and I believe seven of the nine members of

         16  that subcommittee had changed their vote in that

         17  time frame.  All I can surmise, sir, is that some

         18  powers to be made some phone calls and/or put

         19  pressure on those members.  As you know, they are

         20  all appointed.

         21                 For the Zoning Subcommittee to say

         22  one thing on a Monday, and virtually vote the entire

         23  way on a Wednesday seems very, very suspicious to me

         24  other than outside pressure.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Any
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          2  comments from Committee members?  Council Member

          3  Jackson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You said that

          5  there were two City Council Members involved.

          6                 MR. DRISCOLL: Yes, sir.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is that site

          8  located in both Council Member's districts, or are

          9  two Council Members associated or aligned with the

         10  Community Board?

         11                 MR. DRISCOLL: Sir, the problem is

         12  that this particular site is on the nexus of a lot

         13  of areas.  It is in Councilwoman Gonzalez' district,

         14  but it is in Councilman Gentile's Community Board.

         15  It is also on the nexus of three police precincts.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Hold for one

         17  second.  So you're saying that it's in Council

         18  Member Gonzalez' district, but it's in Council

         19  Member Gentile Community Board.

         20                 MR. DRISCOLL: Yes, sir.  That is

         21  correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well if

         23  that's the case then Community Board I assume since

         24  Sara Gonzalez is in her district and that's in a

         25  Community Board, she's also affiliated with that
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          2  Community Board.

          3                 MR. DRISCOLL: No, sir.  Community

          4  Board 10 is the community board that voted on this

          5  particular project.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And that

          7  project is in Council Member Gonzalez' district.

          8                 MR. DRISCOLL: Yes, sir.  It is not in

          9  Community Board 10's district.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Then

         11  what Community Board is that project in?

         12                 MR. DRISCOLL: 10.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: The only

         14  point that I'm making, and I don't know if you're

         15  aware of this, if in fact that is in Council Member

         16  Gonzalez' district, to my understanding, since it is

         17  part of Community Board, Council Member Gonzalez is

         18  involved with Community Board 10.  That Board that

         19  you said is in Council Member Gentile's district is

         20  also part of that.  It's her district also, if, in

         21  fact, that project is in Community Board 10.

         22                 MR. DRISCOLL: Sir, I am extremely

         23  confused.  My understanding is the Community Board

         24  10 members are predominantly appointed by Councilman

         25  Gentile.

                                                            87

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:

          3  Predominantly, but not exclusively.

          4                 MR. DRISCOLL: That's correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What I'm

          6  saying to you is that more than likely Sara

          7  Gonzalez, as the Council Member, since this project

          8  is Community Board 10, she has either one or

          9  several, or more than several, appointments on the

         10  Community Board out of 25 that are recommended by

         11  Council Members.  And as such, that falls within her

         12  jurisdiction of Community Board 10 in Brooklyn.  You

         13  got it?

         14                 MR. DRISCOLL: Sir, I understand what

         15  you're saying. I understand completely, but I cannot

         16  disavow that because I do not know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.  I

         18  just telling you.

         19                 MR. DRISCOLL: And you're supposing

         20  also.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No, I'm not

         22  supposing.  I'm not supposing.  I'm trying to give

         23  you clarity as to factual information for what you

         24  stated earlier was not factually correct.

         25                 MR. DRISCOLL: What did I state that
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          2  was not factual, sir?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You stated

          4  that this project is in Council Member Gonzalez'

          5  district.

          6                 MR. DRISCOLL: That is correct.

          7  Physically.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Physically,

          9  but you said it's also in Community Board 10, which

         10  is not Sara Gonzalez' Community Board.  I'm saying

         11  to you that a Community Board is a geographical

         12  area, and in that geographical area, there may be

         13  several Council Members that have certain areas of

         14  that Community Board.  Since that project is in

         15  Community Board 10, it's in Council Member

         16  Gonzalez's district.  She also has a say on

         17  Community Board 10 and she has one or more

         18  appointments of the 25 that are recommended by

         19  Council Members.

         20                 MR. DRISCOLL: Sir, I fully understand

         21  that, and I cannot disavow that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So I'm not

         23  supposing.  I'm not supposing.  That's a fact.

         24                 MR. DRISCOLL: Okay.  I'm not

         25  disavowing that, sir.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No, but you

          3  stated as a factual matter what was not, and I'm

          4  just clarifying for you that Community Board 10  --

          5                 MR. DRISCOLL: May I restate?  May I

          6  restate?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I've already

          8  restated it for the record so.

          9                 MR. DRISCOLL: Well for the record so

         10  that I understand exactly what it is that we're

         11  talking about.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Go ahead.

         13                 MR. DRISCOLL: Community Board 10 is

         14  predominantly in the purview of Councilman Gentile.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Council

         16  Member Gentile. You're right.

         17                 MR. DRISCOLL: There may be some

         18  members of Community Board 10 that have been

         19  appointed by Councilwoman Gonzalez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Council

         21  Member Gonzalez. You're right.

         22                 MR. DRISCOLL: Councilwoman Gonzalez'

         23  district is drawn in such a manner that this

         24  particular project is within her district, not

         25  Councilman Gentile's district.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Go ahead.

          3                 MR. DRISCOLL: My point being that the

          4  predominant number of individuals in Community Board

          5  10 that voted on this particular project do not have

          6  a stake in the particular physical neighborhood that

          7  Councilwoman Gonzalez represents.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  That's

          9  not what you stated earlier though.

         10                 MR. DRISCOLL: That's why I asked if I

         11  could restate, sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, as long

         13  as you're clear though that Sara Gonzalez' district

         14  and she also has a say in Community Board 10.

         15                 MR. DRISCOLL: I've come to realize,

         16  sir, that Council Members have a say in virtually

         17  everything that goes on.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I don't agree

         19  with that, but anyway, let me just say that I was

         20  curious, because you said two Council Members and

         21  that threw a curve to me and I was wondering why,

         22  and you explained that.

         23                 MR. DRISCOLL: Well, sir, I will say

         24  that perhaps I was misled by Council Member

         25  Gentile's forceful declarations in front of the
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          2  meeting that was held at the Knights of Columbus on

          3  the Wednesday after the subcommittee voted.  He

          4  specifically said that Councilwoman Gonzalez was in

          5  favor of this project and because she was in favor

          6  of it, he was in favor it, and he would vote for it

          7  when it became in front of the Council for voting.

          8  I thought that was inappropriate at that time, sir,

          9  because no one had taken a vote in Community Board

         10  10.  By him stating that, essentially, regardless of

         11  what Community Board 10 decided, he was going to

         12  vote for it anyhow thereby mitigating Community

         13  Board 10's input.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So when

         15  listening to your testimony, your primary objection

         16  is one, that this building is approximately going to

         17  be 11 stories and most of the surrounding area is

         18  two to three stories.  That's number one.  I heard

         19  you make that  --

         20                 MR. DRISCOLL: That was the first

         21  statement, sir, but --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Then number

         23  two, you said that an Environmental Impact Statement

         24  should be done beforehand and not after the fact,

         25  which the Chair indicated that the City Planning
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          2  Commission did an Environmental Assessment which

          3  basically gave the green light on this particular

          4  matter.

          5                 Was there any other objection that

          6  you had, sir? I'm just trying to understand your

          7  objections.

          8                 MR. DRISCOLL: Sir, I was unaware that

          9  the City in fact said yes, you can go ahead and do

         10  this, and I just  --  No, I don't, sir.  It's

         11  obvious to me that this is going to pass no matter

         12  what I say, and I'm just heartsick to see that 1,500

         13  vehicles are going to be in, essentially, my

         14  neighborhood, and within a block of a school, and

         15  the City believes that that doesn't require so type

         16  of environmental study.  It makes no sense to me.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Let me thank

         18  you for coming in and giving testimony.  Obviously,

         19  you could have taken the position hey you know the

         20  cards are stacked against me here based on the

         21  assessment of the Community Board and what have you.

         22    So let me just move on, but you took your time and

         23  energy to come down here to express yourself about

         24  this particular project.  Let me just thank you for

         25  doing that even though, as you say, the conclusion
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          2  may be what you expect it to be, but that's part of

          3  the democratic process of you coming in and

          4  expressing yourself, and I appreciate that.

          5                 MR. DRISCOLL: Sir, I appreciate your

          6  comments. Thank you very much.  I will tell you that

          7  my own mother has said to me that she knows exactly

          8  what she's going to get me for Christmas and that's

          9  a suit of armor and a donkey.  If I'm going to act

         10  like Don Quixote, I might as well dress like him.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is that what

         12  your mother said?  Thank you for coming in.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would certainly

         14  echo the comments.  We appreciate the fact that

         15  you're here, and I think you also have to understand

         16  that we rely very heavily on the local Council

         17  Member and the Community Board, which is this case,

         18  the Community Board voted overwhelmingly in favor of

         19  it.  The Council Member is in support of it.

         20                 I would say that your comments about

         21  the City Environment Review, in my opinion, are

         22  appropriate, but that's the law.  That's the system

         23  that we have currently.  The Environmental Review

         24  threshold should be such that some of the projects

         25  that come before us do trigger an EIS.  I agree with
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          2  you in that respect, but when you're reviewing the

          3  project now, we have to look at what the law is now.

          4    But rest assured, I agree with you on that, and I

          5  have mentioned that on occasion.

          6                 Council Member Stewart has a

          7  question, and I would remind everybody that we need

          8  to take a vote and I don't want to lose quorum.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just wanted

         10  to find out -  You mentioned that this is a

         11  predominantly two or three- family neighborhood.

         12                 MR. DRISCOLL: Yes, sir.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The nearest

         14  11- story building is how far away from this

         15  proposed site?

         16                 MR. DRISCOLL: The largest building

         17  that's close to this one is the Bay Ridge Towers,

         18  which is five City blocks away, and that is a 26-

         19  story building.  It's five avenues away.  It's on

         20  4th Avenue and 65th Street.  This building is going

         21  to be on 8th Avenue.  Directly across the street

         22  from this building are two story and three- story

         23  buildings that front it.  To the left of this

         24  building is an existing six- story storage building

         25  that has been converted to apartments and commercial
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          2  space.  Immediately to the right of this building is

          3  a one- story subway station.  The subway cut, and

          4  then a full block of one- story commercial

          5  buildings.  This will stick out as a sore thumb.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I note as of

          7  now, we intend to down- zone, but this is really a

          8  upzoning that we're trying to do here.

          9                 The current zone there is R3?

         10                 MR. DRISCOLL: This particular

         11  location is commercial zone, sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Oh, it's

         13  commercial zone. All right.

         14                 MR. DRISCOLL: I think it's M1.  That

         15  should be in the applicant's package, sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         17  Thank you.

         18                 MR. DRISCOLL: Thank you.  Thank you

         19  ladies and gentlemen.  I appreciate the opportunity

         20  to speak.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  If

         22  there is no one else signed up to speak in this

         23  item, I'll close the public hearing.

         24                 I will ask Counsel to call the vote.

         25  I will just go through the items that we will be
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          2  voting on.

          3            Excuse me for a second.  Too many pieces

          4  of paper in front of me.

          5                 Chair recommends approval of the

          6  Special West Chelsea District application, the St.

          7  Albans/Hollis Rezoning with the modification, Kings

          8  Material application, 400 5th Avenue application,

          9  the 15- 41 Text Amendment and the Bay Ridge Mixed

         10  Use District, based upon the Community Board

         11  approval and the Council Member's support.  So Chair

         12  recommends approval of those items.

         13                 We will be laying over the Privately

         14  Owned Public Plaza Text, which we discussed, until

         15  October 17th, at 9:30.  There is a Landmarks

         16  Subcommittee meeting immediately thereafter, and the

         17  Land Use meeting immediately thereafter.  So we'll

         18  all be here as well anyway, and that will be for the

         19  vote.

         20                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Chair

         21  Avella.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         24  Member Felder.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

          3  Member Jackson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

          6  Member Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'd like to

          8  explain my vote. First of all, I would like to

          9  congratulate City Planning on a lot of the work they

         10  did today, but also for St. Albans.  I think that

         11  that is going to be a really, really great project

         12  for that area.

         13                 As far as Bay Ridge goes, I just want

         14  to note for the record.  City Planning approved it.

         15  The Borough President approved it.  There are four

         16  conditions the Borough President wanted.  Those

         17  conditions were met.  The two Council Members

         18  approved of it.  The Community Board approved of it,

         19  and you know all and all it actually looks like a

         20  very good project to me, although I understand the

         21  question about the environmental concerns.  That

         22  comes up time and time again.

         23                 I do, however, just want to state for

         24  the record I do not believe that the two Council

         25  Members were misled in anyway by anybody in the
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          2  application process.  I do think that they are both

          3  very good working folks for their Council District,

          4  and there are times when next door down- zonings do

          5  happen and the area is up zoned.  So I just want to

          6  sort of show that there's been a long process here,

          7  and the Council Members do seem very excited about

          8  this project going forward.

          9                 I vote aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         11  Member Gioia.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.  I

         13  vote yes.

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         15  Member McMahon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         18  Member Seabrook.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         21  Member Sears

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         24  Member Stewart

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Vote stands

          3  at nine in the affirmative, none in the negative and

          4  no abstentions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you

          6  everyone.  I know it's been a long hearing.  This

          7  meeting of Zoning and Franchises is recessed until

          8  Thursday, October 17th at 9:30.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 12:04 p.m.)
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